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Our Lady of Mercy Chapel built in 1854 is a “carpenters" Gothic Revival
style building.

The exterior of the church is rectangular in shape with a double entrance
door in the gable end; the projecting vestibule also with a gable roof.

The Gothic Revival features are the graceful pointed-arch windows, 4 on
each side and two in the front flanking the entrance. There is a square tower,
with belfry rising above the gable end. The tower has a jerkinhead roof topped
with a cross.

The chapel overall is 30 X 60 feet. It was originally clapboard but
that has been covered over with asbestos siding. The original foundation
is filled stone and brick.

The interior includes a large rectangular, two-step, platform altar in
back of the main church unit. There are 25 original pews of oak painted
white divided into two sections by a center aisle. The floor is 1 X 3 oak
flooring tongue and groove in the pew area, cement tile in the aisle. There
is a pressed metal ceiling which was added in 1902. A small chair loft
is located in the back of the church.

The rose window above the front entrance is the most outstanding feature
of this edifice having 8 stained glass panels in Tripartite arrangement.

The entire church interior has been sheathed in modern paneling.

Also included on the property are several buildings associated with
the church. They are:

1) Caretakers home, originally served as a convent. 2 story, 3 bays,
hip roof, aluminum siding, modern porch, 2 story addition built into a grade,
exposed basement.

2) Convent, 2 1/2 story, 5 bay, built foundation, 1 1/2 story addition,
2 bay aluminum siding, gable roof, twin chimneys of each end, mid~19th Century.

3) Recreation Hall, Quonset hut coregated sheet metal roof, circular roof
14 bays. -

4) Rectory, 2 1/2 stories, aluminum siding, gable end front, "Queen Anne"
features, modern addition.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Our Lady of Mercy Chapel is one of the few remaining original Roman
Catholic Chapels left in the Morris County area. It is the oldest Catholic
Chapel in the county. The chapel is also significant for its Gothic Revival
architecture and stained glass windows around the church and the large Rose
Window under the belfry.

From the early 18th century Catholics began to settle around the Morris
County area. In the beginning Mass was usually held in the homes of various
members in the area. The number of Catholics in Whippany increased to such
a point that the people decided to establish their own church in the town.

In 1846 Our Lady of Mexcy was established as a Quasi-mission of Madison,
a near-by community. In 1853 the cornerstone for the chapel was laid on
land which had been donated by a parishoner. Our Lady of Mercy continued
to be attended by priests from Madison until 1881, from 1881 to 1883 by
priests by Morristown. Then in July 1883 Whippany was established as a mission
with a resident Pastor Reverend James Brennan.

In 1871 the parishoners decided to open a school for the children in
the area. The cost of the school was $27,000.00. The first year there were
28 students in the school and the parishoners were able to pay the entire
debt for the building of the school by holding concerts, lectures and
contributions from wealthy church members.

In 1877 there were enough members in the church community to hold a
mass every second Sunday. As the parish continued to grow and flourish a
convent for the teachers in the school was added. A rectory was built
in the 1890's.

The church remained unchanged until a fire in December 1943 partially
destroyed the interior. Services were held in the Whippany Firehouse until
the spring of 1944 when the church was restored.

In 1948 the parish purchased the property next door and converted it
into the convent. The Old Convent is now used as caretakers quarters.
In April 1949 a Quonset type building was erected for use as a parish community
center.
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The parish membership continued to grow until it eventually outgrew

the size of the chapel. In 1955 a new church and school was built several
hundred yards from the chapel.

Since 1954 the building has been maintained with little or no changes

except for upkeep. On special occasions and upon request the chapel is
used for services.

Architecture

Our Lady of Mercy chapel was built in 1854 by Harvey Kitchel and is
a representative example of the carpenter's Gothic Revival architecture in
Morris County. Particularly noteworthy for the rose window in the gable
end and the stained glass windows on the sides the chapel is an unacademic
structure, but still projects an attractive appearance.

As the oldest remaining Catholic chapel in Morris County and as an

example of the vernacular Gothic style Our Lady of Marcy merlts inclusion
on the National Register.
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The three (3) buildings included in the Our Lady of Mercy Chapel
nomination were not always owned by the church,but have been associated
with it since their construction.

The Rectory (Building #4) was built specifically to house the priest
of the parish when the congregation had grown large enough to require a full
time priest in the 1890's,

The Caretakers Home (Building #1) originally built as a con=-
vent for the teaching nuns was constructed in the 1880's. This building
was also needed to serve the needs of the growing church commnity.

In 1948 the Parish purchased the property next door to the existing
convent and converted it into the current convent (Building #2). The old
convent had grown too small for the growing parish and is now used for
Caretaker's quarters,

Building #3,a Recreation Hall is to be considered an intrusion,
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